
 

  

 

 Contacting the Council: Telephone: 01782 717717 . 
Email: customerservices@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk.  www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk 

Castle House 
Barracks Road 
Newcastle-under-Lyme 
Staffordshire 

ST5 1BL 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning Committee 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

PART 1 – OPEN AGENDA 

 
1 APOLOGIES    

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    

 To receive Declarations of Interest from Members on items included on the agenda. 
 

3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S)   (Pages 3 - 4) 

 To consider the minutes of the previous meeting(s). 
 

4 APPLICATION FOR MAJOR DEVELOPMENT - LAND AT 
SLACKEN LANE. GLEESON REGENERATION LIMITED 
24/00089/FUL   

(Pages 5 - 22) 

5 APPLICATION FOR MINOR DEVELOPMENT - CLIVE BEECH 
MOTORS LTD, PITGREEN LANE, WOLSTANTON.   THE 
MIDDEN LIVERPOOL LTD. 24/00207/OUT    
       

(Pages 23 - 32) 

 This item includes a supplementary report. 
 

6 LAND AT DODDLESPOOL, BETLEY. 17/00186/207C2   (Pages 33 - 34) 

7 URGENT BUSINESS    

 To consider any business which is urgent within the meaning of Section 100B(4) of the 
Local Government Act, 1972 
 

8 DISCLOSURE OF EXEMPT INFORMATION    

 To resolve that the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
following item(s) because it is likely that there will be a disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraphs 1,2 and 3 in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972. 
 

Date of 
meeting 
 

Tuesday, 25th March, 2025 

Time 
 

7.00 pm 

Venue 
 

Queen Elizabeth II & Astley Rooms - Castle House, Barracks 
Road, Newcastle, Staffs. ST5 1BL 

Contact Geoff Durham 742222 

 

Public Document Pack



 

  

 
Members: Councillors Northcott (Chair), Crisp (Vice-Chair), Beeston, Burnett-Faulkner, 

Bryan, Fear, Holland, Hutchison, Brown, Gorton, J Williams and G Williams 
 

 
Members of the Council: If you identify any personal training/development requirements from any of  the 
items included in this agenda or through issues raised during the meeting, please bring them to the 
attention of the Democratic Services Officer at the close of the meeting. 

 
Meeting Quorums :- Where the total membership of a committee is 12 Members or less, the quorum will 
be 3 members….Where the total membership is more than 12 Members, the quorum will be one quarter of 
the total membership. 

 
SUBSTITUTE MEMBER SCHEME (Section B5 – Rule 2 of Constitution) 

 
 The Constitution provides for the appointment of Substitute members to attend Committees.  The 

named Substitutes for this meeting are listed below:-  
   

Substitute Members: Sweeney 
S Tagg (Leader) 
Heesom 
Johnson 
J Tagg 
S Jones 

Whieldon 
Fox-Hewitt 
D Jones 
Edginton-Plunkett 
Grocott 
Dymond 

 
 If you are unable to attend this meeting and wish to appoint a Substitute to attend on your 

place you need to identify a Substitute member from the list above who is able to attend on 
your behalf 
 
Officers will be in attendance prior to the meeting for informal discussions on agenda items. 
 
NOTE: IF THE FIRE ALARM SOUNDS, PLEASE LEAVE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY 
THROUGH THE FIRE EXIT DOORS. 
 
ON EXITING THE BUILDING, PLEASE ASSEMBLE AT THE FRONT OF THE BUILDING BY THE 
STATUE OF QUEEN VICTORIA. DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL ADVISED TO DO SO. 



  
Planning Committee - 25/02/25 

  
1 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 25th February, 2025 
Time of Commencement: 7.00 pm 

 
View the agenda here 

 
Watch the meeting here 

 
 

Present: Councillor Paul Northcott (Chair) 
 
Councillors: Crisp 

Beeston 
Burnett-Faulkner 
 

Fear 
Holland 
Hutchison 
 

Brown 
J Williams 
G Williams 
 

Apologies: Councillor(s) Gorton 
 
Substitutes: Councillor Dave Jones (In place of Councillor Richard Gorton) 

 
Officers: Geoff Durham Civic & Member Support Officer 
 Craig Jordan Service Director - Planning 
 Rachel Killeen Development Management 

Manager 
 

1. THE MAYOR, COUNCILLOR BARRY PANTER  
 
A minute of silence was observed in respect of the recent passing of the Mayor of 
Newcastle-under-Lyme, Cllr Barry Panter. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
The Chair declared an interest as a member of the Aspire board in reference to item 
5 of the agenda. 
 

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S)  
 
Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 28th January, 2025 be 

agreed as a correct record. 
 

4. APPLICATION FOR MAJOR DEVELOPMENT - FORMER JUBILEE BATHS, 
NELSON PLACE, NEWCASTLE. INTEGRITAS PROPERTY GROUP (IPG) 
NUMBER 8 LTD. 25/00008/FUL  
 
Cllr Fear proposed that the application be refused on the grounding of the 
development not allowing for sufficient car parking provisions. This was seconded by 
Cllr Holland and unanimously agreed. 
 
Resolved: That the application be refused for the following reason: 
 

given the limited car parking provision within the site, the significant 
additional on-street parking demand that was likely to be created by 
the development would lead to an exacerbation of congestion and 
related harm to highway safety on streets in the vicinity of the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3

https://moderngov.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=119&MId=3908&Ver=4
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Badwtsqo8M0&embeds_referring_euri=https%3A%2F%2Fmoderngov.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk%2F


  
Planning Committee - 25/02/25 

  
2 

development contrary to the aims and objectives of the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2023. 

 
Watch the debate here 
 

5. APPLICATION FOR MAJOR DEVELOPMENT - ASHFIELDS GRANGE, HALL 
STREET, NEWCASTLE. ASPIRE HOUSING. 25/00012/FUL  
 
Resolved: That, subject to no objections being raised by 14th March that could 

not be addressed through the imposition of conditions, the Service 
Director – Planning be given the delegated authority to determine the 
application as follows: 

 
PERMIT the application subject to conditions relating to the following 
matters: 

 
1. Variation of condition 12 to refer to the revised plan; 
2. Any other conditions which are still relevant to the original decision. 

 
Watch the debate here 
 

6. 5 BOGGS COTTAGE, KEELE. 14/00036/207C3  
 
Resolved: (i) That the information be received. 

(ii) That an update report be brought to committee in two months’ 
time. 

Watch the debate here 
   

7. DISCLOSURE OF EXEMPT INFORMATION  
 
Resolved: That the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration if 

the following matter because it was likely that there would be 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1, 2, and 7 
in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act, 1972. 

 
8. 5 BOGGS COTTAGE, KEELE. 14/00036/207C3  

 
This matter was discussed in a closed session. 
 

9. HISTORIC BUILDINGS GRANTS - CONDITIONS  
 
Resolved: That the information be received. 
 

10. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There was no urgent business. 
 

 
Councillor Paul Northcott 

Chair 
 

Meeting concluded at 7.28 pm 
 

Page 4

https://youtu.be/Badwtsqo8M0?t=225
https://youtu.be/Badwtsqo8M0?t=775
https://youtu.be/Badwtsqo8M0?t=1310


Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

LAND AT SLACKEN LANE 
GLEESON REGENERATION LIMITED                            24/00089/FUL 
 

The application seeks full planning permission for the erection of 170 no. dwellings with associated 
access and landscaping.  
 
The application site, of approximately 5.94 hectares in extent, is within the urban area of the Borough 
as indicated on the Local Development Framework Proposals Map. Parts of the site are classed as 
brownfield land and the site falls within a high risk coal mining area. A Public Right of Way (Kidsgrove 
139) runs along the south western boundary of the site.  
 
The statutory 13 week determination period for this application expired on the 13th May 2024 but 
an extension of time has been agreed to the 31st March 2025. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
REFUSE for the following reasons:- 
 

1. The applicant has failed to demonstrate that a safe and suitable means of access to the site for 
the intended scale of development is achievable, thereby having an adverse impact on highway 
safety. 

 
2. The proposal does not provide a high quality residential development as a result of its high 

density and due to issues surrounding parking dominant layouts, excessive hard standing at 
the front of properties and a lack of soft landscaping. The resulting development would be 
considered over development and overly urban in character.       
 

3. The access arrangements for the development would result in an increase in noise nuisance 
and loss of privacy to the properties of ‘The Hawthorns’ and no.34 Pickwick Place and would 
therefore have an unacceptably adverse impact on residential amenity.  
 

4. The proposed development would result in the loss of visually significant trees which would be 
harmful to the character of the surrounding area and to natural habitats within the site, and 
insufficient information has been provided to justify the tree loss as part of the proposals.  
 

5. Insufficient information has been provided to demonstrate that the proposed development 
would provide a suitable and sustainable drainage system.  

 

 
Reason for recommendations 
 
It is considered that the proposed development would result in an adverse impact on residential amenity 
and highway safety and would also result in the loss of a significant amount of trees and associated 
wildlife habitats whilst failing to provide a high quality designed scheme. Further to the above, 
insufficient information has been provided to demonstrate that a suitable sustainable drainage system 
can be incorporated into the scheme.  Therefore despite the contribution to the provision of open market 
housing this benefit would be significantly and demonstrably outweighed by the harms relating to 
ecology, biodiversity, drainage, residential amenity, design and highway safety. The proposal is 
therefore contrary to the provisions of the Framework in relation to sustainable development. 
 
Statement as to how the Local Planning Authority has worked in a positive and proactive manner 
in dealing with this application   

It is considered that the applicant is unable to overcome the principal concerns in respect of this 
development and so the proposal represents an unsustainable form of development which conflicts with 
the provisions of the NPPF.  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

 
KEY ISSUES 
 
The application seeks full planning permission for the erection of 170 no. dwellings with associated 
access and landscaping at land off Slacken Lane. The application site, of approximately 5.94 hectares 
in extent, is within the urban area of the Borough as indicated on the Local Development Framework 
Proposals Map. The site also falls within a high risk coal mining area. A Public Right of Way (Kidsgrove 
139) runs along the south western boundary of the site.  
 
The Coal Authority have confirmed that they raise no objections to the proposal subject to a condition 
requiring a scheme to further intrusive investigations to be completed, and on this basis the coal mining 
legacy risk from the site can be safely mitigated. The proposal does not need to demonstrate a 10% 
increase to BNG, as the application was submitted prior to this being a national requirement.  
 
The following key issues are therefore considered relevant to the proposal: 
 

1. The principle of the development of this site for residential purposes, 
2. The design of the development and its impact on the surrounding area, 
3. The impact of the development on highway safety, 
4. Acceptable standards of residential amenity, 
5. The impact on trees, 
6. Impact on ecology  
7. Flood risk and sustainable drainage  
8. Affordable housing,  
9. Open space provision,  
10. Planning obligations and financial viability,   
11. Conclusions and planning balance  

 
Is the principle of the development of this site for residential purposes acceptable? 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) seeks to support the Government’s objective 
of significantly boosting the supply of homes. It also sets out that there is a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development. 
 
The application site within the urban area of the Borough within the western area of Kidsgrove.  
 
CSS Policy SP1 states that new housing will be primarily directed towards sites within Newcastle Town 
Centre, neighbourhoods with General Renewal Areas and Areas of Major Intervention, and within the 
identified significant urban centres. It goes on to say that new development will be prioritised in favour 
of previously developed land where it can support sustainable patterns of development and provides 
access to services and service centres by foot, public transport and cycling. 
 
Paragraph 124 of the Framework states that Planning policies and decisions should promote an 
effective use of land in meeting the need for homes and other uses, while safeguarding and improving 
the environment and ensuring safe and healthy living conditions.   
 
Paragraph 11 of the Framework states that Plans and decisions should apply a presumption in favour 
of sustainable development. For decision-taking this means approving development proposals that 
accord with an up-to-date development plan without delay; or where there are no relevant development 
plan policies, or the policies which are most important for determining the application are out-of-date, 
granting permission unless: 
 

i. the application of policies in the Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or 
ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, 
when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 
(Para 11(d) 
 

Footnote 8 which relates to paragraph 11(d) states that this includes, for applications involving the 
provision of housing, situations where  (a) the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a 5 year 

Page 6



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

supply (or 4 year supply, if applicable as set out in paragraph 227) of deliverable housing sites (with a 
buffer, if applicable, as set out in paragraph 77 and does not benefit from the provisions of paragraph 
76; or (b) where the Housing Delivery Test indicates that the delivery of housing was below 75% of the 
housing requirement over the previous 3 years. 
 
The council cannot currently demonstrate a 5 year supply of housing. 
 
CSS Policies SP1 and ASP5, and Local Plan Policy H1 are concerned with meeting housing 
requirements and given that these policies do not reflect an up-to-date assessment of housing needs, 
they are considered to be out of date in respect of detailed housing requirements by virtue of the 
evidence base upon which they are based.  
 
Therefore, given the lack of a 5 year housing supply and the lack of up-to-date policies in relation to the 
provision of housing, the test in paragraph 11(d) has to be applied. The tilted balance outlined within 
Paragraph 11(d) of the framework is considered to be engaged and an assessment of whether any 
adverse impacts of granting planning permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the polices of the Framework taken as a whole is required. 
 
The site is located in the urban area of the Borough adjacent to an established residential area and is 
therefore considered to represent a sustainable location for housing development by virtue of its close 
proximity to services, amenities and employment opportunities. The site has good access to regular 
bus services to destinations around the borough and beyond.  
 
The design of the residential development and its impact on the surrounding area 
 
Paragraph 131 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that good design is a key aspect of 
sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make development 
acceptable to communities. Furthermore, paragraph 135 of the framework lists 6 criteria, a) – f) with 
which planning policies and decisions should accord and details, amongst other things, that 
developments should be visually attractive and sympathetic to local character and history, including the 
surrounding built environment and landscape setting while not preventing or discouraging appropriate 
innovation or change. 
 
Section 7 of the adopted Newcastle-under-Lyme and Stoke-on-Trent Urban Design Guidance 
Supplementary Planning Document (2010) provides residential design guidance. In particular, Policy 
R3 states that new housing must relate well to its surroundings. It should not ignore the existing 
environment but should respond to and enhance it, exploiting existing site characteristics, such as 
mature trees, existing buildings or long views and incorporating them into the proposal. In addition, 
Policy R14 states that developments must provide an appropriate balance of variety and consistency. 
 
R12 of that same document states that residential development should be designed to contribute 
towards improving the character and quality of the area. Proposals will be required to demonstrate the 
appropriateness of their approach in each case. Development in or on the edge of existing settlements 
should respond to the established urban or suburban character where this exists already and has a 
definite value. Where there is no established urban or suburban character, new development should 
demonstrate that it is creating a new urban character that is appropriate to the area. R13 states that the 
assessment of an appropriate site density must be design-led and should consider massing, height and 
bulk as well as density. R14 states that developments must provide an appropriate balance of variety 
and consistency. 
 
Policy CSP1 of the Core Spatial Strategy (CSS) lists a series of criteria against which proposals are to 
be judged including contributing positively to an area’s identity in terms of scale, density, layout and use 
of materials.  This policy is considered to be consistent with the revised NPPF. 
 
With regards to impact on the landscape, CSS Policy CSP4 indicates that the location, scale, and nature 
of all development should avoid and mitigate adverse impacts (on) the area’s distinctive natural assets 
and landscape character. This policy is considered to be consistent with the NPPF which states that 
the planning system should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by protecting 
and enhancing valued landscapes. 
 

Page 7



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

NLP Policy N17 expects development to be informed by and be sympathetic to landscape character 
and quality which should contribute, as appropriate, to the regeneration, restoration, enhancement, 
maintenance or active conservation of the landscape likely to be affected.  
 
The site currently comprises a mixture of shrubland with some areas of hardstanding. Many semi-
mature and mature trees can be found throughout the site. Parts of the site are classed as brownfield, 
however due to the lack of management the site now appears as a semi natural landscape. The site is 
bounded by a rail line to the north east and existing residential areas to the south west and north west, 
an open area of shrubland which contains a Grade II listed farmhouse is located to the south east.  
 
Nearby dwellings have a traditional appearance and are relatively simple in design, however most enjoy 
good sized gardens and private driveways with the surrounding housing areas being typically suburban 
in appearance. The site is relatively well screened and is not visible from the majority of nearby 
highways and public vantage points, with the exception of the Public Right of Way which runs through 
the site.  
 
Given the landlocked nature of the site, the visual impacts of the proposals in respect of the wider 
landscape and townscape are considered to be minimal, however the loss of trees would lead to a 
significant visual change to the site when seen from surrounding properties.  
 
The overall proposed layout for the scheme shows an area of public open space close to the main 
vehicular entrance, and a large, landscaped area to the north east, part of which would be used as an 
attenuation basin. The central parts of the site would be used for housing only, with no additional open 
public space available to future residents. Whilst existing and new planting will be used along the 
boundaries of the site, all other trees within the central part of the site would be removed, and no attempt 
appears to have been made to utilise existing natural features within the central areas of the site.  
 
The proposed houses would be a combination of detached and semi-detached two and three storey 
properties which would be of traditional design and would be constructed of red brick and white render. 
The proposal does contain a slight variation of housing designs at a central T junction which proposes 
some larger properties. This part of the site is referred to in the Design and Access Statement as a focal 
square of the development.    
 
Aside from the landscaped areas around the site’s boundaries, there are very few areas of soft 
landscaping proposed throughout the application site, and the arrangement of houses has a very urban 
appearance with a density of 41 dwellings per hectare. The high density of properties has resulted in a 
higher need for parking and many street layouts focus heavily on parking areas to the front of properties 
which further emphasise the urban nature of the scheme. Whilst small landscape strips are proposed 
between parking areas to the front of dwellings, these would be too small to support any larger trees or 
shrub planting and would therefore fail to break up the large areas of hardstanding which surround 
them.  
 
The high density of the proposal has also resulted in many houses appearing to be shoehorned into the 
scheme which creates a sense of overdevelopment that conflicts with the more suburban housing area 
which surround the application site.  
 
The scheme also lacks any green pedestrian and cycle routes or any useable areas of amenity space 
within the main housing area, and with the exception of the central focal square there is very little variety 
to the housing types or street layout proposed. Officers consider that there is a missed opportunity to 
provide a wider variation of more distinct parts to the site, which could be supported by a stronger green 
infrastructure or more unique design solutions. In its current form the scheme lacks any form of 
distinction and fails to provide a development with any sense of place or character.   
 
To conclude, the proposal does not provide a high quality residential development as a result of its high 
density and due to issues surrounding parking dominant layouts, excessive hard standing at the front 
of properties and a lack of soft landscaping. The resulting development would be considered 
overdevelopment and overly urban in character and would conflict with design principles and policies 
of the Council’s Urban Design Guidance, Policy CSP1 of the CSS and the guidance and requirements 
of the NPPF.       
 

Page 8



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

The impact of the development on highway safety 
 
Paragraph 114 of the NPPF states that sustainable modes of transport are prompted and seeks to 
ensure that safe and suitable access to a development site can be achieved for all users. Paragraph 
115 highlights that development should only be prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would 
be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network 
would be severe.  
 
Saved Policy T16 of the Newcastle-under-Lyme Local Plan (NLP) states that development which 
provides significantly less parking than the maximum specified levels will not be permitted if this would 
create or aggravate a local on-street parking or traffic problem, and furthermore that development may 
be permitted where local on-street problems can be overcome by measures to improve non-car modes 
of travel to the site and/or measures to control parking and waiting in nearby streets. Such a policy is, 
however, of limited weight as it is not in fully consistent with the Framework given it reference to 
maximum parking levels. 
 
The site is considered to be within a sustainable location and has a range of services located nearby 
which are safely accessible by foot and bicycle.  The proposed residential units would each provide 
sufficient off-street car parking spaces which would be in accordance with the Council’s parking 
standards set out the Local Plan. 
 
Additional highways information has been provided by the applicant to address concerns raised by the 
Highways Authority, however following the latest submission of technical information, the Highways 
Authority have maintained fundamental objections to the proposal. 
 
With respect to traffic movements, the submitted Transport Assessment has forecast that the proposed 
development would generate 84 two-way vehicle trips during the weekday AM peak and 118 two-way 
trips during the weekday PM peak period. 
 
Regarding the access into the site, this would be from the A34 via Slacken Lane which is classed as a 
Private Street of varying width (approximately 5-10 metres) that has no segregated footways/ street 
lighting and is in a very poor state of repair. Slacken Lane is used by several existing properties, and it 
is evident that some on street parking does occur.  The access road leading from the main part of the 
site to the A34 is proposed to be changed to an adoptable standard and would have a retained width 
of 5.5 metres for the majority with a reduced carriageway width of 3.4 metres spanning 50m.  
 
The Highway Authority have noted that in this case the required road hierarchy would be a residential 
connector road to which the design principles are outlined in the Staffordshire Residential design guide 
published in 2000 to ensure a sufficient means of access is available at all times in the event of partial 
blockage caused by road works or accidents. However given the fact that part of the proposed access 
road would utilise a single lane priority give way system  for vehicles to enter and leave the site,  the 
HA consider that the access road does not meet the minimum requirements of the connector road 
technical standard.  
 
In addition to the above, the HA note that the proposed changes to Slacken Lane do not appear to 
consider how existing residential access points can be accommodated within the amended layout of 
Slacken Lane. Slacken Lane is a private road and will accommodate a significant increase of two way 
traffic as a result of the development. Suitable means of access and requisite visibility splays would be 
required for each existing access point, however these matters do not appear to be achievable within 
land under the applicant’s control.  
 
The applicant has also failed to address the potential displacement of parking on the A34 Congleton 
Road and Slacken Lane as a result of the access corridor works. The proposed junction radii at the 
A34/Slacken Lane access and the junction spacing of the proposed connector road junction to the A34/ 
Old Butt Lane junction opposite are substandard from a highway safety perspective. The HA go on 
further to note that the baseline traffic survey data obtained to assess the capacity of the proposed 
priority junction is not sufficient to fully represent the forecast operation of the priority junction design.  
 
The Highway Authority also raise a fundamental concern to whether the applicant has a legal right of 
vehicle access to the site via Slacken Lane. As the first 55 metres of Slacken Lane is a private street 

Page 9



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

and is situated within unregistered land, there is no guarantee that the applicant could achieve full rights 
to the road in the future. Whilst there is a process to change private roads to an adoptable standard (as 
set out within Section 228 of the Highways Act 1980), this process is applied at the highway authority’s 
discretion and is typically only where the risk of objection is minimal. However in this case as can be 
seen from the public objections to the proposal, any proposal to change Slacken Lane to an adopted 
Road would likely be met with objections from residents of the street whose land is adjacent the lane or 
have any rights over or responsibilities for the lane in question. This concern has been raised with the 
applicant and no evidence of consultation with local residents and supportive response has been 
provided to allay the highway authority’s concerns.  
 
The HA also highlight that accessibility to/from the site for pedestrians and cyclists is very limited, and 
consequently they do not believe a safe and suitable means of access for all users can be provided to 
serve the proposed development.  
 
Given the outstanding concerns outlined above, it is considered that the proposal does not demonstrate 
a safe and suitable access into the site and is therefore contrary to the aims and objectives of the NPPF 
and the design principles as set out in the Staffordshire Residential Design Guide (2000).  
 
Acceptable standards of residential amenity 
 
Paragraph 198 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should ensure that new 
development is appropriate for its location taking into account the likely effects (including cumulative 
effects) of pollution on health, living conditions and the natural environment, as well as the potential 
sensitivity of the site or the wider area to impacts that could arise from the development.  
 
Paragraph 199 states that planning policies and decisions should sustain and contribute towards 
compliance with relevant limit values or national objectives for pollutants, taking into account the 
presence of Air Quality Management Areas and Clean Air Zones, and the cumulative impacts from 
individual sites in local areas.  
 
The Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) - Space Around Dwellings provides more 
detailed guidance on privacy and daylight standards including separation distances between proposed 
dwellings and new development in relation to existing dwellings. 
 
Objections received have referred to a loss of quality of life from the construction process, noise and 
disruption that would go hand in hand with a largescale development site.  
 
The majority of properties within the development site would achieve acceptable separation distances, 
in accordance with the Council’s SPG and all properties would benefit from suitably sized private 
gardens.  
 
Following the submission of updated air quality and noise details, the Council’s Environmental Health 
Team have raised no objections to the proposal subject to conditions.  
 
However, your Officers raise concerns regarding the impact of traffic movements past the rear gardens 
of ‘The Hawthorns’ located on Slacken Lane and no.34 Pickwick Place which have their main gardens 
facing directly onto the proposed access road into the site. The significant increase of vehicular 
movements past these rear gardens would lead to a loss of privacy and increase of noise levels due to 
the low level rear boundary wall of ‘The Hawthorns’, and the close proximity of no.34 Pickwick Place to 
Slacken Lane. Whilst an acoustic barrier or wall could help to mitigate some of these impacts, this in 
turn would result in an adverse visual impact of this part of Slacken which is characterised by low level 
boundary treatments, meaning a solution cannot be controlled through a condition or alteration of the 
scheme.  
 
To conclude, the proposal would result in an adverse impact on the rear garden area on the ‘The 
Hawthorns’ and no.34 Pickwick Place from vehicle movements and no consideration has been given 
within this proposal to demonstrate how this impact could be mitigated. The proposal is therefore 
contrary to both local national policies which relate to amenity, namely the guidance set out in Space 
around Dwellings SPG and the NPPF.  
 

Page 10



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Impact on Trees  
 
Paragraph 187 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decision should contribute to and enhance 
the natural and local environment by:  
 

a) protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological value and soils 
(in a manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified quality in the development 
plan); 

b) recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the wider benefits from 
natural capital and ecosystem services – including the economic and other benefits of the best 
and most versatile agricultural land, and of trees and woodland; 

c) maintaining the character of the undeveloped coast, while improving public access to it where 
appropriate;  

d) minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing 
coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future pressures;  

e) preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at unacceptable risk 
from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution or 
land instability. Development should, wherever possible, help to improve local environmental 
conditions such as air and water quality, taking into account relevant information such as river 
basin management plans; and  

f) remediating and mitigating despoiled, degraded, derelict, contaminated and unstable land, 
where appropriate. 

 
Paragraph 192 of the Framework states that when determining planning applications, LPAs should 
apply the following principles;  
 

a) if significant harm to biodiversity resulting from a development cannot be avoided (through 
locating on an alternative site with less harmful impacts), adequately mitigated, or, as a last 
resort, compensated for, then planning permission should be refused;  

b) development on land within or outside a Site of Special Scientific Interest, and which is likely to 
have an adverse effect on it (either individually or in combination with other developments), 
should not normally be permitted. The only exception is where the benefits of the development 
in the location proposed clearly outweigh both its likely impact on the features of the site that 
make it of special scientific interest, and any broader impacts on the national network of Sites 
of Special Scientific Interest;  

c) development resulting in the loss or deterioration of irreplaceable habitats (such as ancient 
woodland and ancient or veteran trees) should be refused, unless there are wholly exceptional 
reasons and a suitable compensation strategy exists; and 

d)  development whose primary objective is to conserve or enhance biodiversity should be 
supported; while opportunities to improve biodiversity in and around developments should be 
integrated as part of their design, especially where this can secure measurable net gains for 
biodiversity or enhance public access to nature where this is appropriate.  

 
Policy CSP4 of the Core Strategy states that “the quality and quantity of the plan area’s natural assets 
will be protected, maintained and enhanced through the following measures … ensuring that the 
location, scale and nature of all development planned and delivered through this Core Spatial Strategy 
avoids and mitigates adverse impacts, and wherever possible enhances, the plan area’s distinctive 
natural assets, landscape character”.  
 
Policy N12 of the Local Plan states that the Council will resist development that would involve the 
removal of any visually significant tree, shrub or hedge, whether mature or not, unless the need for the 
development is sufficient to warrant the tree loss and the loss cannot be avoided by appropriate siting 
or design.  
 
The application is accompanied by an Arboricultural Report which notes that twenty individual trees, 
thirty-one tree groups, three woodlands and four hedgerows were identified on and immediately 
adjacent to the site. The report reveals that 5% of the individual tree population was classified as 
category ‘A’ quality, 45% as category ‘B’ quality and 50% as category ‘C’ quality. No category ‘U’ quality 
trees were identified.  
 

Page 11



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

In order to facilitate the proposed scheme, all trees within the site boundary will require removal except 
for parts of groups along the north and east boundaries. This includes the removal of one individual 
category ‘A’ quality tree (T15), six individual category ‘B’ quality trees (T2, T3, T11, T13, T14, T17) and 
eight category ‘C’ quality individual trees (T1, T4, T10, T12, T16, T18, T19, T20), as well as all other 
trees groups identified above.  
 
Although some trees close to the boundary of the site will be retained and some new landscaped areas 
are proposed, the supporting statement provided with the application states that the extent of replanting 
would not fully compensate for the loss of trees and that this matter should be weighed against the 
benefits of the proposal. Whilst the applicant has acknowledged that there will be a loss of biodiversity 
on the site, they note that it has not been possible to design a scheme that can fully compensate for 
this whilst providing a viable housing development. However, no viability assessment or information 
has been provided in support of the proposal and so no weight can be given to this point.   
 
Whilst the LPA accept that some loss of category C trees could be allowed to facilitate the scheme, the 
overall number of trees to be removed from the site, which includes the removal of category A and B 
trees is something that is not considered to be acceptable. The trees make a good contribution to the 
visual amenity of the wider area and the application site and support a wide range of natural habitats. 
This proposal is also not supported by the Councils Landscape Development Section who agrees that 
the loss of trees from the site is not appropriate and needs further justification.  
 
Policy N13 of the Local Plan goes on to state that the felling of any tree of public amenity will not be 
supported unless one of the following is applicable; 
 
- Its removal forms part of a development permitted in accordance with Policy N12. 
- The applicant can demonstrate that the tree is adversely affecting the structural condition or 
safety of a building or buildings. 
- The applicant can demonstrate that the tree presents an unacceptable risk to the safety of the public. 
- The applicant can demonstrate that the operation is in the best interests of improving the growth of 
other trees. 
 
It is not considered that the applicant has demonstrated any of the above points. Therefore the proposed 
development is considered to be directly contrary to Policy N13 of the Local Plan as well as the aims 
and objectives of the NPPF. 
 
Impact on Ecology  
 
With respect to ecology, an Ecological Assessment (EA) has been submitted. A number of objections 
have been received from residents regarding the impact of the proposal on ecology and habitats. 
 
In respect of Bats, the EA recommends that a further, more detailed assessment be undertaken of the 
potential roosting features. In respect of birds, it is recommended that any works are undertaken outside 
of the bird nesting season, or that a nesting bird check be undertaken by a suitable ecologist.  Given 
the existence of suitable habitat for common lizard and grass snake, a reptile survey was also 
recommended. 
 
Whilst the above surveys could be controlled through conditions, the initial loss of habitats from the site 
as noted in the section above is contrary to both local and national policies which seek to enhance 
biodiversity levels on site, namely paragraphs 187 & 192 of the NPPF, and new planting would not 
mitigate for this loss.  
 
Flood Risk and Sustainable Drainage  
 
NPPF Paragraph 181 outlines that when determining any planning applications, local planning 
authorities should ensure that flood risk is not increased elsewhere. Where appropriate, applications 
should be supported by a site-specific flood-risk assessment. Development should only be allowed in 
areas at risk of flooding where, in the light of this assessment (and the sequential and exception tests, 
as applicable) it can be demonstrated that:  
 

Page 12



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

a) within the site, the most vulnerable development is located in areas of lowest flood risk, unless 
there are overriding reasons to prefer a different location;  

b) the development is appropriately flood resistant and resilient such that, in the event of a flood, 
it could be quickly brought back into use without significant refurbishment;  

c) it incorporates sustainable drainage systems, unless there is clear evidence that this would be 
inappropriate;  

d) any residual risk can be safely managed; and  
e) safe access and escape routes are included where appropriate, as part of an agreed emergency 

plan. 
 
The FRA identifies that the site is within Flood Zone 1, being an area of low probability (of flooding). 
Development within Flood Zone 1 is the preferable option when considered in the context of the 
sequential test found in the NPPF. The Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) have been consulted on the 
application.  
 
The LLFA originally requested that additional information be provided in support of the application.  
Whilst an updated flood risk assessment and a technical note have been submitted in support of the 
proposal, the LLFA have requested further details. In addition, they note that the site lacks SuDS and 
provides little control for the treatment of surface water at source. 
 
No further information has been provided on drainage details and given the comments of the LLFA it is 
considered that insufficient information has been provided to demonstrate that the proposed 
development would provide a suitable and sustainable drainage system.  
 
Affordable Housing and Housing Mix 
 
Policy CSP6 of the CSS states that residential development within the urban areas will be required to 
contribute towards affordable housing at a rate equivalent to a target of 25% of the total dwellings to be 
provided. This application proposes 43 affordable units which is the equivalent of a 25% affordable 
housing provision and therefore meets the requirements of policy CSP6.  
 
It is generally accepted that affordable housing can be either secured by planning condition or by a 
S106 agreement, and if the proposal were to be approved then a S106 agreement would need to be 
entered between the applicant and the council.  
 
The Newcastle-under-Lyme Housing and Economic Needs Assessment Update, dated March 2023, 
still considers that there is a broad mix if housing required but there is a slight shift towards a need for 
larger homes when compared with the previously published 2020 Housing Needs Assessment.  
 
It is considered that a broad mix of housing proposed as part of this development seeks to provide the 
type of dwellings for one person households, couples without children, households with dependent 
children, families with other adults and other types of households. In this regard the mix, type and size 
of dwellings is acceptable.  
 
Open Space Provision  
 
CSS Strategic Aim 2 seeks to facilitate the delivery of the best of healthy urban living in the development 
of the conurbation and to ensure that new development makes adequate provision for all necessary 
community facilities, including health care, education, sports, recreation and leisure. 
 
CSS Policy CSP1 expects new development to contribute positively to healthy lifestyles. 
 
NLP Policy C4 states that an appropriate amount of publicly accessible open space must be provided 
in areas of new housing, and its maintenance must be secured.  The design and location of new play 
areas must take into account community safety issues.  
 
Within the development there would be the provision of 1.59ha of open which is comprised of a mix of 
areas of amenity green space, a local area of play (LAP), a Locally Equipped Area of Play (LEAP), and 
landscape strips along the boundaries of the site.  
 

Page 13



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

The size of the children’s play area proposals meet the minimum requirements outlined within in terms 
of the LAP and LEAP provisions and overall.  
 
In addition to the on-site provision, developments of between 10 and 200 dwellings require a contribution 
for a multi-use games area (MUGA). This can be secured as part of the S106 agreement.  
 
For the reasons outlined above, the proposals are considered to accord with development plan policy 
the guidance set out within the NPPF with respect of open space provision.  
 
Planning obligations  
 
Any developer contribution to be sought must be both lawful, having regard to the statutory tests set 
out in Regulation 122 and 123 of the CIL Regulations, and take into account guidance. It must be:- 
 
• Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms 
• Directly related to the development, and 
• Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 
 
The Integrated Care Board have requested a financial contribution of £152,417 towards supporting the 
future development/adaptation/expansion of the estate within either or both the Newcastle North and 
About Better Care PCNs in alignment with strategic estates planning. 
 
Any permission given would require a S106 agreement to ensure the above contribution is secured.  
 
Conclusions and planning balance  
 
The proposal would provide some social and economic benefits, most notably the construction of 170 
new residential properties on a partially brownfield site within a sustainable location within the urban 
area, which will increase the housing mix and make a contribution to boosting housing supply in the 
Borough. However, the proposal has failed to demonstrate how it can satisfactorily address matters 
relating to highway safety and drainage matters. Furthermore, the proposal would result in a significant 
loss of trees from the site and would have an adverse impact on local ecology. The proposal has also 
failed to provide a high quality scheme and would result in a development of poor visual quality. Finally, 
the proposal would also have an adverse impact on the residential amenity of nearby properties due to 
the increase of traffic movements to and from the site. The adverse impacts of the proposal are therefore 
considered to outweigh the benefits in this case.  
 
Reducing Inequalities  
 
The Equality Act 2010 says public authorities must comply with the public sector equality duty in addition 
to the duty not to discriminate.  The public sector equality duty requires public authorities to 
consider or think about how their policies or decisions affect people who are protected under the 
Equality Act.  If a public authority hasn’t properly considered its public sector equality duty it can be 
challenged in the courts. 
 
The duty aims to make sure public authorities think about things like discrimination and the needs of 
people who are disadvantaged or suffer inequality, when they make decisions. People are protected 
under the Act if they have protected characteristics.  The characteristics that are protected in relation 
to the public sector equality duty are: 
 

• Age 

• Disability 

• Gender reassignment 

• Marriage and civil partnership 

• Pregnancy and maternity 

• Race 

• Religion or belief 

• Sex 

• Sexual orientation 
 

Page 14



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

When public authorities carry out their functions the Equality Act says they must have due regard or 
think about the need to: 
 

• Eliminate unlawful discrimination 

• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those 
who don’t 

• Foster or encourage good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who don’t 
 

With regard to this proposal it is considered that it will not have a differential impact on those with 
protected characteristics 
 
 

Page 15



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

APPENDIX  
 
Policies and Proposals in the approved Development Plan relevant to this decision:- 
 
Newcastle-under-Lyme and Stoke-on-Trent Core Spatial Strategy (CSS) 2006-2026 
 
Policy SP1 Spatial Principles of Targeted Regeneration 
Policy SP3 Spatial Principles of Movement and Access 
Policy ASP5 Newcastle and Kidsgrove Urban Neighbourhoods Area Spatial Policy 
Policy CSP1 Design Quality 
Policy CSP3 Sustainability and Climate Change 
Policy CSP4: Natural Assets 
Policy CSP5 Open Space/Sport/Recreation 
Policy CSP6 Affordable Housing 
Policy CSP10 Planning Obligations 
 
Newcastle-under-Lyme Local Plan (NLP) 2011 
 
Policy H1: Residential development: Sustainable location and protection of the countryside 
Policy T16: Development - General Parking Requirements 
Policy C4: Open Space in New Housing Areas 
Policy N12:  Development and the Protection of Trees 
Policy N13: Felling and Pruning of Trees  
Policy N17: Landscape Character – general Considerations 
Policy IM1: Provision of essential supporting infrastructure and community facilities. 
 
Other material considerations include: 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (2024) 
 
Planning Practice Guidance (March 2019, as updated) 
 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations (2010) as amended and related statutory guidance 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
 
Developer contributions SPD (September 2007) 
 
Affordable Housing SPD (2009) 
 
Newcastle-under-Lyme Open Space Strategy – adopted March 2017 
 
Space Around Dwellings SPG (SAD) (July 2004) 
 
Newcastle-under-Lyme and Stoke-on-Trent Urban Design Guidance Supplementary Planning 
Document (2010) 
 
Waste Management and Recycling Planning Practice Guidance Note approved in 2003 and last 
updated in February 2016 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
None relevant.  
 
Views of Consultees 
 
The Highway Authority raise fundamental concerns in that the access route to the public highway is 
not included within the red edge application boundary and therefore does not demonstrate that a 
suitable means of access can be provided to support the major development.  
 

Page 16

https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/sites/default/files/IMCE/Planning/Planning_Policy/SpatialStrategy/Core%20Strategy%20Final%20Version%20-%2028th%20October.pdf
https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/sites/default/files/IMCE/Planning/Planning_Policy/Newcastle%20Local%20Plan%202011.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/contents
https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/all-services/planning/planning-policy/newcastle-under-lymes-local-development
https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/all-services/planning/planning-policy/newcastle-under-lymes-local-development-framework/affordable
http://moderngov.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/documents/s22542/Newcastle-under-Lyme%20Open%20Space%20Strategy%20Final.pdf
https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/sites/default/files/IMCE/Planning/Planning_Policy/NonLocal/Space%20About%20Dwellings%20SPG.pdf
https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/sites/default/files/IMCE/Planning/Planning_Policy/DevelopmentPlan/5217%20Stoke%20Interactive%20web%2020-12-10.pdf
https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/sites/default/files/IMCE/Planning/Planning_Policy/DevelopmentPlan/5217%20Stoke%20Interactive%20web%2020-12-10.pdf
https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/sites/default/files/IMCE/Planning/Planning_Policy/NonLocal/Microsoft%20Word%20-%20Waste%20Management%20Practice%20Planning%20Guidance%20July%202011%20update.pdf


Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

The Environmental Health Team raises no objections to the proposal subject to conditions relating to 
low emission boilers, a Construction Environmental Management Plan, noise mitigation and land 
contamination. 
 
The Landscape Team raise concerns relating to the loss of a significant number of trees / groups of 
trees and woodland areas. Whilst the loss of some trees on this site to accommodate a development 
could be considered, the level of losses are significant. From the Arboriculture Impact Assessment all 
these trees are graded between A and C, and the loss of grade A-B trees is not supported.  
 
Whilst the provision of the LAP and LEAP are welcomed on this site, the development would also require 
the provision of open space to a minimum 0.68 ha for the 170 dwellings. 
 
The Coal Authority raises no objection to the proposal subject to conditions requiring the submission 
of a scheme of intrusive investigations.   
 
The Canal and River Trust request the submission of additional information relating to drainage and 
land stability before permission can be granted. A CEMP is also requested as a condition prior to the 
start of any development. If the development has the likelihood to increase usage of tow paths then it 
is considered reasonable to request a financial contribution from developers to mitigate this impact, for 
example upgrading an access/towpath surface to a standard which is more durable to accommodate 
increased usage and to sustain it in the future. 
 
The Conservation Officer notes the development site is adjacent to Woodshutts Farmhouse which is 
a Grade II listed building and whilst some attempt over the years has been made to repair the building 
and make it safe it is disappointingly still severely at risk from neglect. Its immediate setting includes 
various outbuildings and a curtilage barn, also similarly at risk. The wider setting character is similar to 
the land where the development is proposed, previously used and overgrown. The layout and houses 
off Slacken Lane are uninspiring and it would have been better to connect the two sites together. If this 
development around Woodshutts does happen, this will create a second access which will be beneficial 
for both developments.  
 
The setting of the canal conservation area will not be compromised by a development of this nature in 
this location. 
 
Network Rail request conditions relating to drainage, risk assessment for the nearby rail line, ground 
stability, noise mitigation, planting details and landscaping and request a developer contribution towards 
additional waiting facilities on the Kidsgrove Railway station platforms as part of any s106 agreement.  
 
The Public Rights of Way Officer notes that if any footpath needs diverting as part of these proposals 
the developer must apply under section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to divert the 
public rights of way to allow the development to commence. 
 
Active Travel England note that their standing advice should be followed.  
 
The Conservation Advisory Working Party was disappointed with the quality of the development, 
unimaginative design and densification of the site. It was especially concerned that the development 
did not acknowledge the presence of the Listed farmhouse and the potential integration and relationship 
with this part of the wider site.  
 
The Lead Local Flood Authority notes that insufficient information has been submitted to demonstrate 
that an acceptable Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted and an acceptable Drainage Strategy 
is proposed. They therefore recommend that planning permission is not granted. 
 
The County Minerals Officer raise no objections to the proposal.  
 
United Utilities raise no objections to the proposal subject to a condition requiring the submission of a 
Sustainable Drainage Scheme.  
 
Staffordshire Police have provided guidance on a number of security matters.  
 

Page 17



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

NHS (integrated care board) request a minimum developer contribution of £152,417, to be applied 
towards the provision of Health Care services within either or both the Newcastle North and About 
Better Care Primary Care Networks.  
 
No comments have been received from Kidsgrove Town Council, the Council’s Waste Team, British 
Waterways, Cheshire East Council, Naturespace, The Housing Strategy Team or from 
Staffordshire Wildlife Trust.  
 
Representations 
 
33 (Thirty Three) letters of representation have been received which raise the following concerns: 
 

• Highway Safety and traffic levels  

• Loss of trees and wildlife  

• Visual Impact 

• Impact on Public Rights of Way 

• Impact on residential amenity 

• Lack of public consultation   

• Impact on local schools and other services 

• Flood risk and drainage  
 
1 letter of support has been received.  
 
Applicant/agent’s submission 
 
All of the application documents can be viewed on the Council’s website using the following link. 
 
https://publicaccess.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/online-applications/PLAN/24/00089/FUL 
 
Background Papers 
Planning File  
Development Plan  
 
Date report prepared  
 
10th March 2025 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18

https://publicaccess.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/online-applications/PLAN/24/00089/FUL


Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

 SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT 
TO THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

25th March 2025 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4                                               Application Ref. 24/00089/FUL    
 
Land off Slacken Lane, Kidsgrove  
 
 
Since the publication of the main agenda report, comments have been received from 
Staffordshire County Council as the Local Education Authority. They conclude that an 
education contribution is not required from this development for primary or secondary school 
provision.  
 
Officers Comments 

 
The RECOMMENDATION remains as set out in the main agenda report. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

CLIVE BEECH MOTORS LTD, PITGREEN LANE, WOLSTANTON           24/00207/OUT 
NEWCASTLE UNDER LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL      
               
 

Outline planning permission is sought for new build 2.5 storey student accommodation, providing 
parking and communal areas and social lounges, and self contained individual units (all matters 
reserved) 
 
The application site is located within the urban area of Wolstanton, as indicated on the Local 
Development Framework Proposals Map.   
 
The 8 week period for determination of the planning application expired on 5th February 2025 but 
the applicant has agreed to an extension of time to 28th March. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
PERMIT the application subject to conditions relating to the following matters:- 

1. Submission of reserved matters 
2. Time limit condition 
3. Approved plans 
4. Restriction on building height to no more than max 2.5 storeys 
5. Building to be for student accommodation only  
6. Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) 
7. Construction hours restriction 

 

 
Reason for Recommendations 
 
The principle of residential development in this sustainable location is considered acceptable. All 
matters are reserved however the indicative plans demonstrate that the site can accommodate student 
accommodation with adequate amenity and parking which will not result in significant harm to adjoining 
residential amenity or the character of the area.  

 
Statement as to how the Local Planning Authority has worked in a positive and proactive manner 
in dealing with the planning application   

Additional information has been sought and received and the proposal is now considered to be a 
sustainable form of development in compliance with the provisions of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

Key Issues 
 
This proposal seeks outline planning permission with all matters reserved for the erection of a 2.5 storey 
building comprising accommodation for 16 students in en-suite bedrooms.  The student accommodation 
would have bedrooms on each floor of the building, with communal area/ kitchen at ground floor. The 
indicative plans demonstrate a parking area for 8 vehicles, cycle storage and bin storage.   
 
The site currently comprises a car repair business located within a main two-storey brick building 
fronting Pitgreen Lane, with single storey extensions to the sides and an adjacent area to the rear used 
for parking of vehicles and a further corrugated building, which would be demolished and replaced by 
the student accommodation building.  There is a shared access between the two areas of land which 
serves properties in Keeling Street. Established residential development, predominantly terraced 
housing, surrounds the site, with Wolstanton Social Club further along Pitgreen Lane. 
 
Whilst outline permission has previously been granted on the site, the reserved matters were not 
submitted within three years of the consent and therefore that consent has lapsed.  The previous and 
current schemes both seek outline permission with all matters reserved initially for a 3-storey building, 
reduced to 2.5 storey building comprising 16 bedrooms as student accommodation.  The indicative 
design of the building and the parking layout are different; however the 2019 consent established that 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

a 2.5 storey building with accommodation for 16 students, associated amenity and parking was 
acceptable in principle in this sustainable location. 
 
The main issues to consider are design and impact on the character of the area, the impact on 
residential amenity, parking and highway safety and planning obligations. 
 
Design and impact on the character of the area 
 
Paragraph 131 of the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) states that good design is 
a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps 
make development acceptable to communities.  
  
Paragraph 135 of the framework lists 6 criteria, a) – f) with which planning policies and decisions should 
accord and details, amongst other things, that developments should be visually attractive and 
sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built environment and landscape 
setting while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change.  
  
Policy CSP1 of the Council’s Core Spatial Strategy 2006-2026 requires that the design of the 
development is respectful to the character of the area.  
 
The application is for outline planning permission with all matters reserved, therefore the submitted 
plans are indicative only.   
 
The scheme that was approved in 2019 provided indicative plans only and was amended to 
demonstrate that a 2.5 storey building of an appropriate scale and design could be accommodated on 
the site.  
 
In regard to the current application, officers raised concerns regarding the indicative plans that show a 
substantial 3-storey building and the agent of the application has subsequently agreed to change the 
description of the application so that it refers to a 2.5 storey building only, however, no further indicative 
plans have been submitted.   
 
The site is a corner plot fronting Pitgreen Lane and George Street, and the building would be visible 
and prominent from the frontage, side and rear; therefore, the design at reserved matters will need to 
reflect this prominent position. It is considered that the 2.5 storey building design will need to be of a 
scale, massing and height that is in keeping with the character and appearance of the 2-storey mainly 
terraced housing adjacent to the site. A condition should be imposed that restricts the building to 2.5 
storey height as a maximum. 
 
The area on George Street proposed for car parking, cycles and bin storage is currently an incidental 
piece of land that is used for some informal parking and storage. Subject to an appropriate and workable 
layout for parking and bin storage being devised; this part of the site would be enhanced by a more 
formalised parking layout and could be further improved with the addition of landscaping. 
 
Given that all matters including layout, scale and appearance are reserved for a further application, it is 
considered that an appropriate scheme could be designed which is of a scale and form that reflects the 
character of the area, thus complying with planning policy in the NPPF. 
 
Impact on adjoining residential amenity 
 
Paragraph 135 (f) of the NPPF states that development should create places that are safe, inclusive 
and accessible and which promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing 
and future users. 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) Space Around Dwellings provides guidance on new 
dwellings including the need for privacy, daylight standards, and environmental considerations. 

 
It is considered the removal of the existing motor service business, which could be intensified, and its 
replacement with residential use would result in less noise and disturbance to adjoining residential 
properties. It is therefore considered that whilst the student accommodation may result in some limited 

Page 24



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

noise to surrounding area, it is unlikely to be more significant than the noise levels which could currently 
occur on site under the existing lawful use of the land.  
 
There are concerns that the scale and layout of the development could result in loss of light and outlook 
to adjoining properties and the windows on the rear elevation of the new building could result in 
overlooking and loss of privacy, due to the limited separation distance between the development and 
existing dwellings.  However, all matters are reserved; therefore, it is considered that the impact on 
adjoining residential amenity could be minimised with careful design and limits on the scale and height 
of the building and the majority of principal windows to student bedrooms on the front elevation facing 
Pitgreen Lane and side elevation facing George Street. 
 
It is noted that the room sizes for both the student bedrooms and the communal kitchen and living space 
on ground floor are relatively small; however, this would be a matter that would need consideration in 
the detailed design stage and under separate Building Regulations requirements. The 2019 scheme 
was considered acceptable in this regard, and the application has been submitted based on the 
previous outline approval. 
 
Therefore, it is considered that the proposal would conform to the relevant criteria in the National 
Planning Policy Framework.  
 
Parking and Highway Safety 
 
Paragraph 116 of the NPPF details that development should only be prevented or refused on highways 
grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts 
on the road network would be severe.  
 
Policy T16 of the Local Plan states that development which provides significantly less parking than the 
maximum specified levels will not be permitted if this would create or aggravate a local on street or 
parking problem.  
 
The indicative plan shows an area of car parking, cycle storage and bin storage accessed off George 
Street, Keeling Street and the access track to the rear of properties in Keeling Street and Pitgreen Lane. 
The parking provision would be 8 car parking spaces for 16 students - 1 space per 2 students – with 
additional cycle parking. The site is in a sustainable location with access to bus services and shops; 
therefore, the provision of 1 car space per 2 students is considered acceptable; although it is 
acknowledged that there is already on-street parking on adjoining streets, and the development must 
not exacerbate existing issues of highway safety. 
 
The provision of some off-street car parking for the development addresses the neighbour objections 
to some degree regarding the distance from the universities and lack of direct public transport. 
 
Whilst these are indicative plans only, the Highways Authority has raised concerns that the 3 parking 
spaces served from the rear access track would not be accessible due to a lack of manoeuvring space, 
and queries whether this number of spaces can be accommodated. The applicant has submitted 
additional information to demonstrate that a suitable solution for the access and parking can be provided 
and that issues of highway safety can be overcome. 
 
Subject to the applicant demonstrating the proposal can provide adequate access and parking facilities 
to the satisfaction of the Highways Engineer, it is considered that the development would be acceptable 
in highway terms. 
 
Planning obligation considerations 
 
The Council’s Landscape Officer has requested a financial contribution of £4,427 per dwelling towards 
open space improvements in the vicinity. There was also a request for a larger amount (£5,579 per 
dwelling) by the Landscape Officer in 2019. In both cases, it is considered that the proposal is for student 
accommodation with shared facilities – kitchen and living space; therefore, this does not constitute 16 
individual dwellings; rather 16 student bedrooms sharing communal facilities. On this basis, it is not 
considered that a request for this financial contribution could be justified. 
 

Page 25



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Other matters 
 
A number of neighbour objections have been raised in relation to the suitability of the site for student 
accommodation and concern that the use of the building may alter in the future resulting in issues of 
antisocial behaviour. Officers propose a condition to restrict the use to student accommodation only. 
 
Reducing Inequalities  
 
The Equality Act 2010 says public authorities must comply with the public sector equality duty in addition 
to the duty not to discriminate.  The public sector equality duty requires public authorities to consider or 
think about how their policies or decisions affect people who are protected under the Equality Act.  If a 
public authority hasn’t properly considered its public sector equality duty it can be challenged in the 
courts. 
 
The duty aims to make sure public authorities think about things like discrimination and the needs of 
people who are disadvantaged or suffer inequality, when they make decisions. 
 
People are protected under the Act if they have protected characteristics.  The characteristics that are 
protected in relation to the public sector equality duty are: 
 

 Age 

 Disability 

 Gender reassignment 

 Marriage and civil partnership 

 Pregnancy and maternity 

 Race 

 Religion or belief 

 Sex 

 Sexual orientation 
 
When public authorities carry out their functions the Equality Act says they must have due regard or 
think about the need to: 
 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those 
who don’t 

 Foster or encourage good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who don’t 

 
With regard to this proposal it is considered that it will not have a differential impact on those with 
protected characteristics.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

APPENDIX 
 
Policies and Proposals in the approved Development Plan relevant to this decision: - 
 
Newcastle-under-Lyme and Stoke-on-Trent Core Spatial Strategy  (CSS) 2006-2026 
 
Policy SP1:  Spatial Principles of Targeted Regeneration 
Policy ASP5:  Newcastle and Kidsgrove Urban Neighbourhoods Area Spatial Policy 
Policy CSP1:  Design Quality 
Policy CSP3:  Sustainability and Climate Change 
 
Newcastle-under-Lyme Local Plan  (NLP) 2011 
 
Policy H1:  Residential Development: Sustainable Location and Protection of the Countryside 
Policy T16:  Development – General Parking Requirements 
 
Other Material Considerations include: 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2024)  
 
Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) (2023) 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) 
 
Newcastle-under-Lyme and Stoke-on-Trent Urban Design Guidance Supplementary Planning 
Document  (2010) 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
19/00137/OUT  New build 3-storey student accommodation – Permitted 
 
18/00076/OUT   The building of 2 properties to form 8 apartments and 4 student units - Refused     
 
Views of Consultees 
 
The Highway Authority has requested a Transport Assessment to enable a full assessment of the 
highway impacts of the scheme.  The information has been received and the further comments of the 
Highway Authority will be reported to Members in a supplementary report. 
 
The Environmental Health Division has confirmed that they do not wish to make any further 
comments and that the comments made in relation to the previous application, Ref. 19/00137/OUT, 
remain valid.  Their original response required conditions to control hours of construction and 
submission of CEMP management plan. 
 
The Landscape Development Section has raised no objection in principle subject to the applicant 
entering into a S106 agreement to pay £4,427 per dwelling towards open space improvements in the 
vicinity. 
 
NatureSpace Partnership considers the development would be unlikely to have an impact on Great 
Crested Newts and therefore has no comment to make. 
 
No comments have been received from the Council’s Waste Team.  
 
Representations 
 
Eight letters of representation have been received. A summary of the objections and comments 
received is as follows: 
 

 Existing parking problems would be exacerbated by the development 

 Highway safety issues – danger to pedestrians 

Page 27

https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/sites/default/files/IMCE/Planning/Planning_Policy/SpatialStrategy/Core%20Strategy%20Final%20Version%20-%2028th%20October.pdf
https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/sites/default/files/IMCE/Planning/Planning_Policy/Newcastle%20Local%20Plan%202011.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/sites/default/files/IMCE/Planning/Planning_Policy/DevelopmentPlan/5217%20Stoke%20Interactive%20web%2020-12-10.pdf
https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/sites/default/files/IMCE/Planning/Planning_Policy/DevelopmentPlan/5217%20Stoke%20Interactive%20web%2020-12-10.pdf


Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

 8 car parking spaces for 16 students is insufficient 

 Land off George Street not large enough for proposed parking and bin storage  

 3-storey building out of keeping with area and constitutes overdevelopment 

 Communal area too small for number of occupants 

 Bedroom space very limited – won’t accommodate desk/ wardrobe etc. 

 Environmental standards – insulation and energy efficiency at minimum standards for Building 
Regulations 

 Biodiversity Net Gain required 

 Loss of light at existing properties 

 Overlooking and loss of privacy from proposed windows 

 Location not suitable for students – distance from universities and no direct public transport 
links 

 Concern that building will ultimately not be occupied by students and associated antisocial 
behaviour 

 Amount of noise and disruption in quiet residential area 

 Previous refusal for development on the site 

 Pressure on existing services, such as doctors  

 Development would require retaining structures 

 Opportunity for affordable housing on the land 
 
Background Papers 
 
Planning files referred to 
Planning Documents referred to 
 
Date report prepared 
 
13th March 2025  

 

 

 

 

Page 28



Error! Unknown document property name. 

Error! Unknown document property name. 

SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT 
TO THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

25th March 2025 
 

Agenda Item 5                         Application Ref. 25/00207/OUT 
 
Clive Beech Motors Ltd, Pitgreen Lane, Wolstanton 
 
Following submission of additional information, the Highway Authority has raised no 
objections on the basis that this is an outline application with all matters reserved. A condition 
is recommended requiring submission of the details of the marked-out car parking spaces with 
the reserved matters application. 
 
An additional representation has been received reiterating concerns raised previously 
regarding parking, lack of adequate bus service and insufficient room sizes. It is also stated 
that the existing garage is a good neighbour and significant disturbance as a result of the 
business activities has not been experienced. Your Officer considers that these matters have 
been sufficiently dealt with in the main agenda report. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The recommendation is revised as follows: 
 
PERMIT the application subject to conditions relating to the following matters:- 

1. Submission of reserved matters 
2. Time limit condition 
3. Approved plans 
4. Restriction on building height to no more than max 2.5 storeys 
5. Building to be for student accommodation only  
6. Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) 
7. Construction hours restriction 
8. Reserved matters application to include details of delineation of car parking 

spaces 
    

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



  

  

 
LAND AT DODDLESPOOL, BETLEY reference 17/00186/207C2 
 

 
The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an update on the progress of the works 
being undertaken at this site following the planning application for the retention and 
completion of a partially constructed agricultural track, approved under planning permission 
21/00286/FUL. 
 

 

 RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the information be received. 
 

 
Latest Information 
 
As previously reported, works to the track are largely complete and the landowner now needs 
to carry out the approved landscaping works.  
 
Your officers are progressing the appropriate enforcement action against the landowner to 
ensure that the landscaping works, as required by condition 4 of planning permission 
21/00286/FUL, are carried out in accordance with the approved plans at the earliest 
opportunity.  
 
 
Date Report Prepared – 13 March 2025 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S)
	4 APPLICATION FOR MAJOR DEVELOPMENT - LAND AT SLACKEN LANE. GLEESON REGENERATION LIMITED 24/00089/FUL
	supplementary report slacken lane_ (002)
	24.00089.FUL

	5 APPLICATION FOR MINOR DEVELOPMENT - CLIVE BEECH MOTORS LTD, PITGREEN LANE, WOLSTANTON.  	THE MIDDEN LIVERPOOL LTD. 24/00207/OUT
	Clive Beech supplementary
	24.00207.OUT

	6 LAND AT DODDLESPOOL, BETLEY. 17/00186/207C2

